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The Columbia County Courthouse, designed by W. W. Hall and built in 1905 is
an example of Second Renaisisance Revival. The structure, rectangular in plan and
domed, is composed of blond brick with stone detailing. The two storeys, separ-
ated by an agee cornice, are articulated differently at each level. Windows at
the first level have stone lintels separating their transoms from the window proper.
The sills are stone and the transoms are topped by stone flat arches and pronounced
key stones. On the second level, masonry pilasters with Corinthian capitals sep-
arate windows which are topped by corniced stone lintels. A modillioned and den-
ticulated cornice articulates the top of the building. The foundation is of
rusticated stona. TFach elevation is broken into three bays.

The north and south elevations are identical with the middle bay inset. The
entrances on these elevations are interior porches the openings of which are framed
in a semi-circular stone arch springing from a masonry vier which is set into full
entablature composed of Corinthian capitals pilasters supporting a modillioned
and denticulated cornice. Above the entrance, on the second level, is a gallery
with Corinthian capitals and decorative iron railing.

On the east elevation, a two storey, pedimented portico forms the main entrance
to the building. The first level of the portico is a masonry rectangle opened by
three Roman arches on the east side and by one on the north and one on the south.
The imposts are of stone and the arches are stone with pronounced keystones. On
the second level, a Corinthian colonnade supports a pediment containing an acanthus
frieze.

The entrance, center, bay of the west elevation projects slightly. It also
is two storied and has a pediment and acanthus frieze. At its first level is an
interior porch like that on the north and south elevations. Above are Corinthian
pilksters between windows bays.

‘ There have been few alterations to the exterior of the structure. Wooden
windows have been replaced with metal windows and the north and south entrances

have been cemented.

The interior, however, is much altered. Originally, there was a cross-shaped
hall running between the four entrances. The north to south axis is now partitioned
into office space. Some interior surfaces have been paneled. The courtroom on the
second floor was originally two storeys high with a gallery around the rotunda walls.
However, a third floor was built above the courtroom and uses space in the rotunda.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The three-storey Columbia County Courthouse, de51gned by W. W, Hall, was built
in 1905. Today, its exterior remains a classic example of Second Renalssance
Revival architecture. The massive, rectangular structure is composed of blond
brick with stone detailing. Only two stories are apparent through observation of
the exterior. These floors are separated by an agee cornice. The rotunda which
centers the building and which once housed a tall courtroom, has been divided to
form two floors, one of which forms the building's third floor.

All detailing -on the building reflects the revival of interest in the Classic
and Renaissance motif, which characterized much of America's and Arkansas' public
building in the early twentieth-century. Corinthian columns, arcades, pediments,
keystone lintels and the rotunda are a few of the Neo-Classic Revival features
found on the structure. In keeping with Renaissance, the exterior treatment of each
floor is articulated in differing patterns. The north and south elevations of the
structure are identical and the entrances to each of these elevations have been
concreted over as the hallways leading from these entrances have been transformed
into office and storage space. The main entrance, a Roman three-bay arcade surmount-
ed by a second floor, colonnaded portico, is located on the Past plevaflon,

The basic fabric of the interior remains intact. However, its original appear-
ance is much altered. The interior has been partitioned into modern office space
and many of the original walls have been paneled. The original wooden stairway
remains and the east—west entrance-hallway presents reasonable if somewhat worn,
reminders of its original appearance. The two-storey courtroom, located in the
rotunda, has been divided into two floors and the upper floor serves as a second
courtroom in the building.

Centering a square around which is built the Magnolia business district, the
"Columbia County courthouse is the third courthouse to occupy the site. Columbia
County was formed in 1852 and became the fifty-fifth of Arkansas' seventy-five
counties. Almost immediately after the county was organized, a temporary log
courthouse was built on the south side of Magnolia's public square. Construction
began on a permanent courthouse in 1856. In 1903, a two-mill tax levy mas made for
the construction of the present courthouse building and the contract was made for the
lowest bid of $58, 631.21 in 1905. 1Initially, Columbia County was one of Arkansas'
leaders in cotton production. However, in recent years the oil and timber industries
have formed the backbone of the local economy.

Another, if somewhat more abstract, area of significance belonging to the
building is that it symbolizes the historic role county government has played in
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Columbia County. County government has been and is the closest and most personal

contact between the people of Columbia County and representative democracy. The
administrative arm of county government is conducted by a body of officials elected
in a county-wide ballot. The fiscal and minor judicial work of the county is
handled by the Quorum Court, whose members are elected by voters grouped in town-
ships. Duties of the county government are varied and range from the maintenance
and improvement of highways to the issuing of marriage licenses and the recording
of deeds. The county even serves, to some extent, as the basic administrative

and judicial unit of state government. The state welfare and auditorial depart-
ments and chancery and juvenile courts all operate at the county level.

In Arkansas, as a rule, the county courthouse building is one of the most
impressive public buildings in the county. This is certainly the case for the
Columbia County Courthouse in Magnolia. The emphasis upon the large size and
impressive detailing found on the courthouse reflects the importance which the
citizens of the county have placed upon local government, for county government
administers to basic local needs of the people, and by doing so has helped to deter-
mine the pattern which history has followed in Columbia County.
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’

The Honorable R. W. Herjde

Columbia County Judge 'a.
Columbia County Courthew
Magnolia, Arkansas 71

AUG 161977

NATIONAL

REGISTER Columbia County Courthouse

Dear Judge Henderson:

The staff of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program is preparing a National
Register nomination for the Columbia County Courthouse which will be presented

to the Arkansas State Review Committee at their September meeting. If approved
the nomination will be submitted to the National Register office in Washington

for final consideration.

The National Register of Historic Places is a listing of historic sites, buildings,
objects and districts from all across the country that are worthy of preservation.
Entry in the National Register is an honor which places no obligation on a private
owner. It does, however, provide protection through comment by the Advisory Council
on Historic Preservation from federally funded, assisted or licensed projects that
might affect a National Register property.

On October 4, 1976, the President signed a Tax Reform Act of which Section 2124
refers to tax incentives for historic properties. Enclosed you will find an
information sheet on that tax act.

If you have any questions concerning the program or this property's nomination
please contact Mike Shinn of our staff.

Enclosed are two copies of this letter. Please complete the form below, sign
and return the original to our office. The copy is for your files. We would
appreciate receiving any comments you might have concerning the nomination of
this property. If we do not hear from you within 30 days your approval will
be assumed.

Sincerely,
&, (2 Torecdls Q
Do baa o O osalaue

Barbara Woodard, Deputy Director
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

I approve of the nomination of the above property X
to the National Register of Historic Places. Yes No

Comments: I am very happy that this Courthouse is being considered and
I feel that it is a fine example of an historical place in it's
architecture and construction. We will be happy to work with
your agency any way we can.
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A DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ARKANSAS NATURAL & CULTURAL HERITAGE
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